# Lake Superior State University Board of Trustees Minutes of Meeting Walker Cisler Student and Conference Center Sault Ste. Marie, Michigan January 26, 2018

The Board of Trustees of Lake Superior State University met in regular session beginning at 8:30 a.m. on Friday, January 26, 2018, in the East Superior Room, Walker Cisler Student and Conference Center, Lake Superior State University, Sault Ste. Marie, Michigan. The meeting was pursuant to Section 1.01. of the Bylaws of said Board with notice to the Board pursuant to Section 1.04., and public notice pursuant to Section 1.05. of the Bylaws.

The section numbers and headings of these minutes correspond to the agenda. A copy of the proposed agenda was distributed to each Trustee at the public session of January 26, 2018. The proposed agenda had been sent pursuant to Section 1.04. of the Bylaws. Copies of all such material are contained as appendices to these minutes.

At the call to order, there were several members in the audience and one member of the press.

#### I. Roll Call

Chair Rodney M. Nelson, called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. He asked Ms. Kaye M. Batho, Secretary, to call the roll. The following members responded "present":

Mr. Thomas C. Bailey

Mr. Douglas R. Bovin

Mr. James P. Curran

Dr. Mark W. Mercer

Mr. Rodney M. Nelson

Ms. Ann Parker

Mr. Randy Pingatore

Ms. Sandi Frost Steensma

Dr. Peter T. Mitchell, President and ex-officio

Eight Trustees were recorded as present with Trustees Curran and Frost Steensma present via teleconference. Present for the University were Mr. Dakota Baker, President of Student Government; Ms. Wendy Beach, Director of Human Resources; Mr. Thomas Coates, Director of Foundation; Dr. David Paitson, Director of Athletics; Dr. David Finley, Interim Provost and Academic Vice

President; Ms. Kellie Greener, Interim Admissions Director; Mr. Steve Gregory, Director of Physical Plant; and Mr. Maurice Walworth, Vice President for

Finance; Dr. Ralf Wilhelms, LSSU Faculty Association; Ms. Shelley Wooley, Interim Associate Dean of Student Life;

#### II. Approval of the Agenda for January 26, 2018

Ms. Parker moved for Board approval to amend the agenda for January 26, 2018 to include under item VII. Finance Committee item an approval of Cloverland Electric Cooperative sale of the west annex and to move the last action item, approval of the cell tower land lease-third amendment to be discussed first; supported by Mr. Pingatore. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

# III. Approval of the Minutes for November 3, 2017, December 15, 2017 and December 29, 2017

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of the minutes for November 3, 2017, December 15, 2017 and December 29, 2017 as presented; supported by Mr. Pingatore. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

#### IV. Addresses to the Board

There were no addresses to the Board.

#### V. Chair's Remarks

Mr. Nelson welcomed all to the Board meeting. He informed all of the Board meeting and dinner with tribal leaders from the Bureau of Indian Affairs, Bay Mills and Sault Tribe of Chippewa Indians which was productive. He welcomed incoming new Trustee member, Mr. Richard Barch and thanked Trustees Bovin and Curran for their years of service. He added that Mr. Curran will be on campus at an upcoming Board meeting to be recognized.

Dr. Mercer moved for Board approval of the resolution of appreciation for Trustee Bovin as read by Dr. Mitchell (Appendix A); supported by Mr. Bailey. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

#### VI. <u>President's Remarks</u>

Dr. Mitchell welcomed all to the Board meeting. His Board orientation focused on two legislative, on-going issues regarding the Michigan Indian Tuition Waiver (MITW) and Tuition Incentive Program (TIP). MITW has not been fully funded for several years. This past year a modest increase was approved. This year LSSU will be encouraging an additional increase. Last year a motion to limit TIP to three times the average in-district per credit hour tuition at Michigan

community colleges was approved. This would change the funding from per credit hour tuition at LSSU of \$468 to \$330 resulting a shortfall of \$138 per credit or \$3,312 per year. LSSU,

NMU, and MTU will be working with the Senate and the House of Representatives to restore the formula to the original of the LSSU tuition. Dr. Mitchell also updated the Board on enrollment, CFRE project, strategic direction, financial model and progress on the SIM Center being located in the Arts Center.

# VII. Report of the Finance Committee

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval to appoint President Peter T. Mitchell as the attorney-in-fact to sign on behalf of LSSU all documents necessary to executive the third amendment to the lease agreement between LSSU and Cellco partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless as presented; supported by Ms. Parker. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of the execution of the third amendment to the lease and direct Dr. Mitchell, as the attorney-in-fact to sign on behalf of LSSU all documents necessary to executive the third amendment to the lease agreement between LSSU and Cellco partnership d/b/a Verizon Wireless as presented; supported by Mr. Bovin. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Dr. Mercer moved for Board approval of the draft annual financial report recommendation as presented and to be distributed and posted on the LSSU website upon approval; supported by Ms. Parker. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Mr. Walworth updated the Board on informational items including P3 (private public partnerships) review of ideas for housing options, CFRE meetings with SmithGroup and projections for the general fund.

Mr. Pingatore moved for Board approval of the fiscal year 2018 auxiliary budget as presented (Appendix B); supported by Mr. Bovin. The Chair requested a roll call vote. The results of the roll vote were:

Mr. Thomas C. Bailey	"Yes"
Mr. Douglas R. Bovin	"Yes"
Mr. James P. Curran	"Yes"
Dr. Mark W. Mercer	"Yes"
Mr. Rodney M. Nelson	"Yes"
Ms. Ann Parker	"Yes"
Mr. Randy Pingatore	"Yes"
Ms. Sandi Frost Steensma	"Yes"

The motion carried with eight affirmative votes.

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of the sale of the LSSU property of the West annex and property surrounding the annex for \$450,000 as presented; supported by

Dr. Mercer. The Chair requested a roll call vote. The results of the roll call vote were:

Mr. Thomas C. Bailey	"Yes"
Mr. Douglas R. Bovin	"Yes"
Mr. James P. Curran	"Yes"
Dr. Mark W. Mercer	"Yes"
Mr. Rodney M. Nelson	"Yes"
Ms. Ann Parker	"Yes"
Mr. Randy Pingatore	"Yes"
Ms. Sandi Frost Steensma	"Yes"

The motion carried with eight affirmative votes.

#### VIII. Report of the Human Resources Committee

Ms. Parker gave an update on the Presidential Search noting several meetings held and over 60 applications. The Presidential Search Committee conducted video interviews with seven candidates. Candidates will be asked to visit campus in February 2018 and anticipating an appointment announcement in March 2018. Mr. Nelson added that the new strategic direction will continue forward with new President.

### IX. Report of Academic Affairs Committee

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of a posthumous Honorary Doctorate of Humane Letters for Professor James W.T. Moody as presented (Appendix C); supported by Mr. Pingatore. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of Steven Johnson for tenure status effective fall 2018; supported by Ms. Parker. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of Melissa Shaffer-O'Connell for tenure status effective fall 2018; supported by Ms. Parker. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of the Steven Johnson status change from Assistant Professor to Associate Professor effective fall 2018; and

Christopher Smith from Assistant Professor to Associate Professor effective fall 2018; and

Ralf Wilhelm from Associate Professor to Professor effective fall 2018. The motion was supported by Ms. Parker. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Mr. Nelson stated that the recommended sabbatical leave will be conducted later in the meeting when the faculty member is present.

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of the recommended course fess for 2018-19 academic year as presented; supported by Dr. Mercer. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Dr. Finley informed the Board of academic informational items including HLC required status report has been submitted for deadline of March 2018, program review with units has begun, regional fire science training center and the EUP early college program has been launched in 7 districts.

Dr. Wilhelm informed the Board that the LSSU Faculty Association supports the positive collaborations and progress toward common goals for the University.

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of the recommendation for the appointment of the following individuals to their respective board of directors for the terms listed:

Kristi Kusek to Innocademy Allegan campus for a term expiring June 30, 2019;

Jillian Stelma to Regent Park Scholars Academy for a term expiring June 30, 2020.

Ms. Parker supported the motion. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of the recommendation to reauthorize American International Academy charter contract through June 30, 2023; supported by Dr. Mercer. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of the recommendation to reauthorize Bay City Academy charter contract through June 30, 2023; supported by Mr. Pingatore. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of the recommendation to reauthorize DeTour Arts and Technology Academy charter contract through June 30, 2023; supported by Mr. Pingatore. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of the recommendation to reauthorize Innocademy charter contract through June 30, 2023; supported by Mr. Pingatore. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of the recommendation to reauthorize Tipton Academy charter contract through June 30, 2023; supported by Mr. Pingatore. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

#### X. Enrollment Report

Ms. Greener updated the Board regarding the current enrollment numbers as of today demonstrate 115% increase in applications for first time in college students and a 136% increase for admitted students (2226 vs. 944 from 2018 to 2017). She added that several events are in process of being planned for prospective and admitted students such as sophomore/junior day, acceptance day and Laker Gold Scholarship.

#### **XI.** Report of the Student Affairs Committee

Student Government Baker informed the Board of informational items including food pantry use, student ski pass program has approximately 400 students participating, outdoor ice rink progress, and recent Student Government meetings.

Mr. Baker informed the Board of a resolution passed by Student Government on November 16, 2017. President Mitchell informed the Board of the resolution background and information. He requested the Board to accept the spirit of the Indigenous People Day resolution as part of the three threads that comprise the fabric of Sault Ste. Marie, (1) explorers like Father Marquette and Christopher Columbus- noting that he has participated in discussions with the City Commissioners at CC hall (2) our indigenous population who have occupied the land for millennia and whose heritage and traditions are intregal to the Sault and LSSU (3) our sister city across the International Bridge in Ontario where almost 10% of our students reside by celebrating Canadian Thanksgiving. He noted, the importance of Jim Collins' phrase: "the tyranny of the "or" versus the liberation of the "and" in terms of celebrating all three cultures not pitting one against another.

Dr. Mitchell's recommendation was that the Board express appreciation to Student Government for their support of our Native people and to highlight the proud history and heritage of our tribes and tribal leaders for over 2000 years, the last 350 years as Sault Ste. Marie. In accepting the resolution, the Board reaffirmed that as the third oldest city in the United States, we celebrate explorers

like Father Marquette and Christopher Columbus and the Roman Catholic influence on the region by continuing to celebrate Columbus day as a national holiday. Moreover, because Canada, our neighbor and partner across the river, celebrates this day as the country's Thanksgiving Day, we integrate celebrating Canadian heritage.

The Board agreed to accept the intent and spirit of the Student Government resolution and requested that the LSSU Native American Center, Student Government and the LSSU administration collaborate on establishing the second

Monday of October as a celebration of Columbus day, Indigenous People, Native American History and Heritage Day, and Canadian Thanksgiving Day and to develop a program to highlight these three important cultures and people of LSSU and Sault Ste. Marie. The Board also encouraged LSSU to work with the city to host an event that combines these heritages.

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval to acknowledge an Indigenous day at LSSU on the second Monday of October, along with Canadian Thanksgiving and Columbus day as presented; supported by Mr. Pingatore. The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Mr. Curran departed the meeting at 10:10 a.m.

Mr. Bailey moved for Board approval of R. Marshall Werner to sabbatical status effective fall 2018 for two semesters as presented; supported by Ms. Parker The motion carried with unanimous voice vote.

Ms. Wooley informed the Board of information items including efforts across campus to collaborate on retention, academic forgiveness program, Snowfest events, Native American History month and upcoming Black History month.

Dr. Mitchell acknowledged Carol Schmitigal, Sharmay Wood and Derric Knight for their dedication to our students and Ms. Wooley commended Ms. Erica Newland, Grant Director, for her assistance in grant writing for student life.

Dr. Paitson informed the Board of athletic updates including athletic office transformation, new staff, facility review, multi-year coaches and increasing social media athletic coverage.

## XII. Report of the Development Committee

Mr. Coates informed the Board of information items including support form the Foundation and Trustees Boards, 100% giving from Athletic Office, Health Care Center and the CFRE project campaign.

# XIII. Other Business

Mr. Bovin reflected on his term on the Board and stated how he enjoyed the opportunities he had as a Trustee. He commended his fellow Trustees, Ms. Batho, Mr. Coates, Dr. Finley, Dr. Mitchell, Mr. Walworth the many faculty, staff, students he has worked with during his term.

# XIV. Adjournment

Mr. Bailey moved for adjournment at 10:40 a.m.; supported by Dr. Mercer.	The
motion carried with unanimous voice vote.	

Rodney M. Nelson	Peter T. Mitchell
Chair	President

Minutes prepared by Ms. Kaye M. Batho, Secretary. A draft of these minutes was completed on February 5, 2018.